

ORDINANCE NO. 2020-26

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF VENICE, FLORIDA, AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES, CHAPTER 54, SOLID WASTE, ARTICLE I, IN GENERAL, SECTION 54-1, DEFINITIONS; ARTICLE III, STORAGE, PREPARATION AND COLLECTION OF SOLID WASTE, DIVISION 1, STORAGE, SEC. 54-51, STORAGE OF SOLID WASTE AND DIVISION 2, PREPARATION, SEC. 54-61, PREPARATION OF SOLID WASTE AND DIVISION 3, COLLECTION, SEC. 54-73, COLLECTION OF SOLID WASTE AND DIVISION 4, OTHER WASTES, SEC. 54-85, BULK WASTE; ARTICLE IV, RECYCLING, SEC. 54-93, OWNERSHIP OF RECYCLING CONTAINERS; ARTICLE V, STORAGE, PREPARATION AND COLLECTION OF RECYCLABLES, DIVISION 1, STORAGE, SEC. 54-110, STORAGE OF RECYCLING CONTAINERS AND DIVISION 2, PREPARATION, SEC. 54-120, PREPARATION OF RECYCLING AND DIVISION 3, COLLECTION, SEC. 54-130, COLLECTION OF RECYCLING; AND ARTICLE VI, RATES AND CHARGES; BILLING PROCEDURE, SEC. 54-161, FEE SCHEDULE; DEPOSITS; PROVIDING FOR REPEAL OF ALL ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT HERewith; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE

WHEREAS, the Venice City Council recognizes that solid waste and recycling services may change over time for various reasons such as improved service, lower cost, or enhanced environmental practices; and

WHEREAS, the Code of Ordinances is being updated to implement previously approved and scheduled solid waste collection rate increases and stakeholder recommendations; and

WHEREAS, effective February 1, 2020, the City transitioned to fully automated can collections for solid waste and recycling; and

WHEREAS, the Code of Ordinances is being updated to include a fee schedule for commercial cardboard dumpsters.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VENICE, FLORIDA:

SECTION 1. The Whereas clauses above are ratified and confirmed as true and correct.

SECTION 2. Chapter 54, Solid Waste, Article I, In General, Section 54-1, Definitions, for Commercial customers, Recycling container and Solid waste container (manual) are amended as follows:

ARTICLE I. – IN GENERAL

Sec. 54-1. Definitions.

Commercial customers may include, but are not limited to, manufacturers, wholesale and retail establishments, home businesses, restaurants, shopping centers, campgrounds, nontaxable churches, recreational vehicle parks and day-use recreational areas, retirement facilities, nursing homes, assisted-living facilities, licensed child-care facilities, and all other establishments not classified as residential which produce or accumulate solid waste and maintain centralized locations for solid waste ~~bins~~ carts or containers.

Recycling container means any container authorized and approved by the city for the collection of recyclable materials, including but not limited to, recycling ~~bins~~, carts, dumpsters and roll-offs. Plastic bags shall not be used in lieu of or within recycling containers.

~~*Solid waste container (manual)* means a traditional wheeled or non-wheeled, watertight receptacle of impervious material with a tight-fitting lid suitable to protect the contents from insects, rodents and other animals of a capacity not to exceed 35 gallons and provided by the property owner or tenant.~~

SECTION 3. Chapter 54, Solid Waste, Article III, Storage, Preparation and Collection of Solid Waste, Division 1, Storage, Section 54-51, Storage of solid waste, is amended to read as follows:

Sec. 54-51. Storage of solid waste containers.

- (a) *Residential solid waste - ~~All services~~*. All containers shall be stored off the right-of-way prior to being brought curbside on the day of collection.
- (b) No change.
- (c) No change.

SECTION 4. Chapter 54, Solid Waste, Article III, Storage, Preparation and Collection of Solid Waste, Division 2, Preparation, Section 54-61, Preparation of solid waste, is amended to read as follows:

Sec. 54-61. Preparation of solid waste.

- ~~(a) *Residential solid waste – Manual service*. Those residents who have manual solid waste collection shall provide solid waste containers (manual) of such size and type, and at such locations, as the director may reasonably require in order to promote the sanitary, aesthetic and economic collection and disposal of solid waste. No container placed curbside for collection shall weigh more than 40 pounds. All solid waste, before being placed in containers for collection, shall have all free liquids drained~~

~~from it and may be wrapped in paper and placed in appropriate plastic or paper bags. Only solid waste shall be placed in the containers.~~

~~(a)(b)~~ *Residential solid waste. - Automated services.* For new customers with automated solid waste collection, one solid waste container (automated) will be provided at a cost of \$100.00. New customers may order a solid waste and recycling container concurrently at a cost of \$150.00 total. All solid waste, before being placed in containers for collection, shall have all free liquids drained from it and may be wrapped in paper and placed in appropriate plastic or paper bags. Residents may choose from 35-, 65- or 95-gallon cart sizes. Each cart will be embedded with a radio frequency identification tag that will designate each cart to a specific property. Carts remain the sole property of the city. Residents may request a second cart or replacement cart at a cost of \$100.00. There shall be no charge for a replacement cart needed due to normal wear and tear. Only solid waste shall be placed in the containers.

~~(b)(c)~~ *Residential solid waste - Special needs customers.* Customers physically unable to place containers at curbside shall receive non-curbside service at no extra charge. The director shall determine eligibility for such service. The director is authorized to request medical verification of eligibility for such service. Containers must be visible from the road.

~~(c)(d)~~ *Commercial solid waste - Manual services.* ~~Commercial customers who have manual solid waste collection shall provide solid waste containers (manual) of such size and type, and at such locations, as the director may reasonably require in order to promote the sanitary, aesthetic and economic collection and disposal of solid waste. No container placed curbside for collection shall weigh more than 40 pounds.~~

~~(d)(e)~~ *Commercial solid waste - Automated services.* All owners or operators of hotels, motels, restaurants, condominiums, schools, churches and other businesses and institutions within the city shall lease city-owned dumpsters or roll-offs of such size and type and at such locations as the director or his designee may reasonably require in order to promote the sanitary, aesthetic and economic collection and disposal of solid waste and recyclables. The dumpsters shall be kept clean and free from putrescible residue by the lessee. The city shall maintain and repair the dumpsters. With the authorization of the director or his designee, the lease of a 95-gallon solid waste container (automated) may be utilized by certain commercial establishments. The containers will remain the property of the city and shall be kept clean and free from putrescible residue by the lessee. The city will repair and maintain the carts. All commercial customers shall ensure all solid waste fits inside the container in such a way that enables the lid to close completely. For customers using open-top roll-off containers, all solid waste shall not extend over the top of the container and obstruct the covering system for the container.

SECTION 5. Chapter 54, Solid Waste, Article III, Storage, Preparation and Collection of Solid Waste, Division 3, Collection, Section 54-73, Collection of solid waste, is amended to read as follows:

Sec. 54-73. Collection of solid waste.

(a) Residential collection service.

- (1) *Frequency.* Generally, solid waste will be collected twice each week. On legal holidays and days in which the sanitary landfill is closed, collection of solid waste will not be made and collection for those persons affected will resume on their next regularly scheduled day of collection for solid waste.
- ~~(2) *Placement of containers—Manual services.* Containers shall be placed curbside for collection at ground level on the property being served. Containers shall be placed a minimum of three feet away from other objects. All containers shall be stored prior to being brought curbside no later than 7:00 a.m. on the day of collection and removed from the curbside and brought back to storage by 6:00 p.m.~~
- ~~(2)(3)~~ *Placement of containers - Automated services.* Containers shall be placed curbside for collection at ground level on the property being served. All containers shall be stored prior to being brought curbside no later than 7:00 a.m. on the day of collection and removed from the curbside and brought back to storage by 6:00 p.m. Containers shall be placed a minimum of three feet away from other objects. The arrows on the topside lid of the container must point towards the street. All solid waste must fit inside the container in order to be serviced.
- ~~(4) *Limitations—Manual services.* On each collection day, the city shall collect an unlimited amount of properly prepared solid waste from each residential living unit.~~
- ~~(3)(5)~~ *Limitations - Automated services.* On each collection day, the city shall collect the solid waste container(s) ~~(automated)~~ assigned to each residential living unit.
- ~~(4)(6)~~ *Liability.* The city will not be responsible for damage to any access gate, private road, driving surface, pavement or accompanying sub-surface and entire container placement site except due to intentional, grossly negligent or willful misconduct by the city. All gated communities shall ensure that the gates are in working order. The city will not be responsible for damage to city provided collection containers when the damage is caused by inappropriate materials being placed in the container such as gasoline, motor oil, paint or corrosives. If the cart becomes unusable, the resident will be required to obtain a replacement cart at a cost of \$100.00.

(b) Commercial collection services.

- (1) *Frequency.* Generally, collection for commercial customers with ~~automated~~ ~~or manual can~~ service will be twice each week. Commercial customers with dumpster service may choose to have the dumpster collected from once to six times weekly. Commercial customers with roll-off service may choose to be on an

on-call collection service or a scheduled collection service of one to six times weekly.

- (2) *Placement of containers - Generally.* All containers shall be easily accessible from the street by the collection vehicles, shall be located on firm, level ground on a concrete or asphalt pad from the storage point to an accessible collection point, shall have proper washing and drainage facilities at the location, and shall be designed or equipped to prevent spillage or leakage during on-site storage or service. Overloaded containers may be charged an additional fee and solid waste not placed within the dumpster will not be collected. Providing and maintaining acceptable access to a location approved for a container shall be the exclusive responsibility of the property owner. The property owner shall provide unobstructed access to the containers on the scheduled collection day. Failure to do so may result in an additional fee for a return trip service.
 - a. *Dumpster services.* Rollout service is available for an extra fee for dumpsters that are not readily accessible for collection. The property owner shall maintain the enclosure structure and gates in working order at all times.
 - b. *Can or cart services.* The property owner shall maintain the enclosure.
 - c. *Roll-off services.* The property owner shall maintain any permanent roll-offs in an enclosure meeting the standards of subsection 54-51(c).
- (3) *Limitations.* The city shall collect a reasonable accumulation of solid waste from hotels, motels, restaurants, schools, churches and other businesses and institutions during the collection period according to the rate schedule set forth in article VI of this chapter. The director shall have the authority to refuse to collect extra amounts or to make an additional charge for such amounts.
- (4) *Liability.* The property owner shall ensure that any right-of-way provided by the customer for the city's equipment is sufficient to bear the weight of all the city's equipment and vehicles reasonably required to perform service contracted. The city will not be responsible for damage to any private road, driving surface, pavement or accompanying sub-surface and entire container placement site except due to negligence or willful misconduct by the city. The city shall not be responsible for normal wear and tear of any part of a container enclosure.

SECTION 6. Chapter 54, Solid Waste, Article III, Storage, Preparation and Collection of Solid Waste, Division 4, Other Wastes, Section 54-85, Bulk waste, is amended to read as follows:

Sec. 54-85. Bulk waste.

(a) *Residential bulk collection - Solid waste.*

~~(1) *Residential collection - Manual services.* Solid waste items that are longer than two feet by four feet and/or weigh more than 40 pounds can be collected curbside, by appointment for a fee.~~

~~(1)(2)~~ *Residential collection—Automated services.* Solid waste items that ~~are longer than two feet by four feet and/or weigh more than 40 pounds and/or do not fit inside the city provided collection cart~~ can be collected curbside, by appointment for a fee. The customer must make an appointment for collection before placing the items curbside. Bulk waste charges will be applied to an active city utility account. If no account exists, the solid waste bulk collection fee must be prepaid prior to collection.

(b) *Residential bulk collection - Recycling.*

- (1) *White goods collection - All services.* White goods will be collected at no additional fee. All white goods for collection must be curbside at the property they were generated from on the appointed day, and not set under power lines or tree branches. White goods must be a minimum of three feet from any other object.
- (2) *Yard waste collection - All services.* Yard waste consisting of more than that allowed by subsection 54-120(a)(2) is collected by appointment only. Each residential living unit is allowed two 20-yard collections each fiscal year free of charge. For amounts greater than the two 20-yard collections per year, a fee will be charged in accordance with article VI of this chapter. Only brush, small branches, fronds, bushes, shrubs, or leaves can be included in this collection. No stumps, logs, trees or branches measuring larger than ~~eight~~ six inches in diameter may be included. Piles of yard waste must be curbside at the property they were generated from and not set under power lines or tree branches. Piles must be a minimum of three feet from any other objects.

(c) *Commercial bulk collection.* Commercial customers may schedule an appointment for bulk item collection for a fee.

SECTION 7. Chapter 54, Solid Waste, Article IV, Recycling, Section 54-93, Ownership of recycling containers, is amended to read as follows:

Sec. 54-93. Ownership of recycling containers.

Containers for recycling which ~~may be~~ are provided to users shall be and remain the sole property of the city. It shall be unlawful and a violation of this chapter for any person to use such containers for any other purpose than storing recyclable materials for collection, to intentionally damage or destroy such containers, or to fail to return such containers to the city when no longer used for such purpose.

SECTION 8. Chapter 54, Solid Waste, Article V, Storage, Preparation and Collection of Recyclables, Division 1, Storage, Section 54-110, Storage of recycling containers, is amended to read as follows:

Sec. 54-110. Storage of recycling containers.

- (a) *Residential recycling storage—All services.* All containers shall be stored prior to being brought curbside no later than 7:00 a.m. on the day of collection and removed from the curbside and brought back to storage by 6:00 p.m.
- (b) *Commercial recycling storage.* In all zoning districts, excluding neighborhoods comprised solely of single- and two-family dwellings, containers for recyclables shall be stored in an enclosure that meets the requirements of subsection 54-51(c), such that recycling containers are not visible from the street on which they are located or from adjacent residentially zoned properties. Storage areas shall be free from debris and structurally sound.

SECTION 9. Chapter 54, Solid Waste, Article V, Storage, Preparation and Collection of Recyclables, Division 2, Preparation, Section 54-120, Preparation of recycling, is amended to read as follows:

Sec. 54-120. Preparation of recycling.

- (a) *Residential recycling.* ~~Residents are provided recycling bins at no charge. Additional bins may be provided by request.~~ For new customers, one 65- or 95-gallon recycle cart will be provided at a cost of \$100.00. New customers may order a solid waste and recycling container concurrently at a cost of \$150.00 total. ~~Excess recycling may be placed in paper bags.~~ Plastic bags are not permissible in recycling containers or for excess recycling.
 - (1) *Corrugated cardboard .* Corrugated cardboard must be broken down and placed inside the recycle cart for collection ~~shall be flattened and cut down to two feet by three feet or smaller.~~ Staples and tape with water-soluble glues do not have to be removed. Commercial customers using dumpsters must make sure the materials will free-flow when the container is emptied.
 - (2) *Yard waste.* Tree trimmings, hedge clippings and similar material shall be cut into lengths not to exceed four feet and shall be securely tied in bundles not more than two feet thick. Tree trimmings or similar materials not exceeding four feet in length may be placed in traditional manual collection styled garbage cans or paper bags. No garbage cans, paper bags or bundles of tree trimmings or similar materials over 40 pounds shall be placed at curbside for collection. Plastic bags are not permissible for yard waste disposal. The city does not provide containers for yard waste collection.
- (b) *Commercial recycling.* Commercial customers shall use city provided recycling containers only. Commercial customers are offered ~~bins, 94-gallon carts or as well as dumpsters and roll-offs for cardboard.~~ Charges apply for all containers. Materials must be separated by material type. may be comingled in 94-gallon carts. Dumpsters and roll-offs are for cardboard only. Lids on cardboard dumpsters must be kept closed to prevent water contamination. Additional charges for contamination may apply if lids are not closed. Commercial customers

using dumpsters or roll-offs must make sure the materials will free-flow when the container is emptied. Commercial customers must schedule yard waste collection and additional charges will apply.

SECTION 10. Chapter 54, Solid Waste, Article V, Storage, Preparation and Collection of Recyclables, Division 3, Collection, Section 54-130, Collection of recycling, is amended to read as follows:

Sec. 54-130. Collection of recycling.

(a) *Residential collection service.*

- (1) *Frequency.* Generally, recycling will be collected once each week. On legal holidays and days in which the sanitary landfill is closed, collection of recycling will not be made and collection for those persons affected will resume on their next regularly scheduled day of collection for solid waste.
- (2) *Placement of containers.* Containers shall be placed curbside for collection at ground level on the property being served or in a place designated by the city. All containers shall be stored prior to being brought curbside no later than 7:00 a.m. on the day of collection and removed from the curbside and brought back to storage by 6:00 p.m. Containers shall be placed a minimum of three feet away from other objects. The arrows on the topside lid of the container must point towards the street. All recycling must fit inside the recycling container in order to be serviced.
- (3) *Limitations.* On each recycling collection day, the city shall collect the recycling container(s) assigned to each residential living unit.
- (4) *Liability.* The city will not be responsible for damage to any access gate, private road, driving surface, pavement or accompanying sub-surface and entire container placement site except due to intentional, grossly negligent or willful misconduct by the city. All gated communities shall ensure that the gates are in working order. The city will not be responsible for damage to city provided collection containers when the damage is caused by inappropriate materials being placed in the container such as gasoline, motor oil, paint or corrosives. If the cart becomes unusable, the resident will be required to obtain a replacement container at a cost of \$100.00.

(b) *Commercial collection service.*

- (1) *Frequency.* Generally, recycling will be collected once each week. Customers with dumpster service may choose to have the dumpster collected from one to six times weekly. Commercial customers with roll-off service may choose to be an on-call collection service or a scheduled collection service of one to six times weekly.

- (2) *Placement of containers – Generally. ~~Dumpsters, roll-offs, bins or 94-gallon carts.~~* All containers shall be easily accessible from the street by the collection vehicles, shall be located on firm, level ground on a concrete or asphalt pad from the storage point to an accessible collection point, shall have proper washing and drainage facilities at the location, and shall be designed or equipped to prevent spillage or leakage during on-site storage or service. ~~Overloaded containers may be charged an additional fee. Rollout service is available for an extra fee for dumpsters that are not readily accessible for collection. Providing and maintaining acceptable access to a location approved for a dumpster shall be the exclusive responsibility of the property owner. The property owner shall ensure that any right-of-way provided by the customer for the city's equipment is sufficient to bear the weight of all the city's equipment and vehicles reasonably required to perform contracted service. The city will not be responsible for damage to any private road, driving surface, pavement or accompanying sub-surface and entire container placement site except due to the negligence or willful misconduct of the city. The city shall not be responsible for normal wear and tear of any part of a container enclosure or gate. The property owner shall maintain the enclosure structure and gates in working order at all times. The property owner shall provide unobstructed access to the containers on the scheduled collection day. Failure to do so may result in an additional fee for a return trip service.~~

All containers shall be easily accessible from the street by the collection vehicles, shall be located on firm, level ground on a concrete or asphalt pad from the storage point to an accessible collection point, shall have proper washing and drainage facilities at the location, and shall be designed or equipped to prevent spillage or leakage during on-site storage or service. Overloaded containers may be charged an additional fee and recycling not placed within the dumpster will not be collected. Providing and maintaining acceptable access to a location approved for a container shall be the exclusive responsibility of the property owner. The property owner shall provide unobstructed access to the containers on the scheduled collection day. Failure to do so may result in an additional fee for a return trip service.

- a. *Dumpster services.* Rollout service is available for an extra fee for dumpsters that are not readily accessible for collection. The property owner shall maintain the enclosure structure and gates in working order at all times.
 - b. *Cart services.* The property owner shall maintain the enclosure.
 - c. *Roll-off services.* The property owner shall maintain any permanent roll-offs in an enclosure meeting the standards of subsection 54-51(c).
- (3) *Limitations - Commercial services.* The city shall collect a reasonable accumulation of recycling, as determined by the director or his designee, from hotels, motels, restaurants, schools, churches and other businesses and

institutions per week according to the rate schedule set forth in article VI of this chapter. The director shall have the authority to refuse to collect extra amounts or to make an additional charge for such amounts.

SECTION 11. Chapter 54, Solid Waste, Article VI, Rate and Charges; Billing Procedure, Section 54-161, Fee schedule; deposits, is amended to read as follows:

Sec. 54-161. Fee schedule; deposits.

- (a) *Basic service.* The fees for basic service for the collection and disposal of solid waste placed for collection in containers accessible to city collection equipment shall be as follows:

	Charge per Month
(1) Residential customers—Manual services. Each residential living unit using container service shall pay fees as follows: Unlimited containers, not to exceed 40 pounds per container, picked up twice a week	\$11.51
(2)(1) Residential customers—Automated <i>services.</i> Each residential living unit shall be provided by the city one 35-, 65-, or 95- gallon, wheeled cart, at a cost of \$100.00 for new customers, picked up twice a week (one cart)	\$11.51 <u>\$11.86</u>
Residents will be charged \$100.00 to obtain a second cart (two carts)	\$16.51 <u>\$16.86</u>
(3) Commercial customers—Manual services. For hotels, motels, restaurants, schools, churches and other businesses and institutions using container service not to exceed 40 pounds per container, the fee shall be as follows:	
One or two containers, picked up twice a week	\$11.51
(4)(2) Commercial customers—Automated <i>services.</i> Prior approval must be received by the director or designee for all commercial customers to use cart collection for their solid waste removal. Carts	

are assigned to the property address and may not be removed. Carts remain the property of the city. Customers shall lease a 95-gallon cart, the fee shall be as follows:

One 95-gallon cart picked up twice a week ~~\$11.51~~ \$11.86

(b) *Recycling*. Recycling fees are as follows:

Charge per Month

(1) *Residential customers*. Each residential living unit shall be provided by the city one 65- or 95-gallon, wheeled cart, at a cost of \$100.00. ~~using container service shall pay fees as follows:~~

a. Single-family residences: ~~Two containers, 14 gallons each,~~ One container picked up once a week

~~\$8.76~~ \$9.02

b. Multi-family living units, apartments and manufactured homes: Each multi-family living unit will be provided ~~one of~~ the following:

~~1. Two red boxes per each living unit, picked up once a week~~

~~\$8.76~~

~~2.~~ 1. 94-gallon containers as necessary per establishment, picked up once a week

~~\$8.76~~ \$9.02

(2) *Commercial customers*. Each commercial business will be provided the opportunity to utilize city service for recycling. Such service will be provided at the customer's request for the following fees:

~~a. Two containers, 14 gallons each, picked up once a week~~

~~\$8.76~~

~~b a.~~ 94-gallon containers collected once a week:

- | | |
|-------------------------------------|-----------------------------------|
| 1. First container | \$30.60 <u>\$29.42</u> |
| 2. All additional containers (each) | \$20.40 <u>\$19.62</u> |

e b. Two, 32-gallon cans, paper bags or bundles of yard waste collected once a week \$8.42

(3) *Fee surcharge.* A surcharge may be added to the current fees for the collection of program recyclables based on the difference between the city's actual and projected net disposal costs. The initial surcharge percentage, and any subsequent adjustments, shall be adopted by resolution of the city council.

(c) *Dumpsters.* For multifamily dwellings, hotels, motels, restaurants, schools, churches and other businesses and institutions using dumpsters, the fee shall be based upon the materials being disposed of, size of the dumpster and the frequency of collection as follows:

MONTHLY FEE FOR ONE COLLECTION PER WEEK

Compacted <u>Solid Waste</u> Materials, Dumpster Privately Owned		
Dumpster Size (cubic yards)	Standard Service	Pull-Out Service
1	\$237.34	\$251.96
1 1/2	271.26	287.95
2	311.96	331.13
3	379.76	403.12
4	440.79	467.90
6	589.97	626.28
8	N/A	N/A

Noncompacted <u>Solid Waste</u> Materials, Dumpster Leased From City		
Dumpster Size (cubic yards)	Standard Service	Pull-Out Service
1	\$73.12	\$76.78
1½	N/A	N/A
2	95.45	100.25
3	115.79	121.63
4	134.40	141.16
6	180.14	189.21
8	233.60	245.70

Noncompacted Yard Waste Materials, Dumpster Leased From City		
<u>Dumpster Size</u> <u>(cubic yards)</u>	<u>Standard Service</u>	<u>Pull-Out Service</u>
<u>2</u>	<u>95.45</u>	<u>100.25</u>
<u>3</u>	<u>115.79</u>	<u>121.63</u>
<u>4</u>	<u>134.40</u>	<u>141.16</u>
<u>6</u>	<u>180.14</u>	<u>189.21</u>

Noncompacted Cardboard Recyclable Materials, Dumpster Leased From City		
<u>Dumpster Size</u> <u>(cubic yards)</u>	<u>Standard Service</u>	<u>Pull-Out Service</u>
<u>2</u>	<u>73.12</u>	<u>76.78</u>
<u>3</u>	<u>83.27</u>	<u>87.43</u>
<u>4</u>	<u>95.45</u>	<u>100.25</u>
<u>6</u>	<u>115.79</u>	<u>121.63</u>

MONTHLY FEE FOR TWO COLLECTIONS PER WEEK

Compacted <u>Solid Waste</u> Materials, Dumpster Privately Owned
--

Dumpster Size (cubic yards)	Standard Service	Pull-Out Service
1	\$474.68	\$503.92
1 1/2	542.51	575.88
2	623.89	662.28
3	759.51	806.25
4	881.58	935.82
6	1,179.95	1,252.57
8	N/A	N/A

Noncompacted <u>Solid Waste</u> Materials, Dumpster Leased From City		
Dumpster Size (cubic yards)	Standard Service	Pull-Out Service
1	\$132.45	\$139.76
1 1/2	N/A	N/A
2	173.42	183.04
3	210.74	222.43
4	244.59	258.15
6	327.64	345.79
8	430.16	454.36

<u>Noncompacted Cardboard Recyclable Materials, Dumpster Leased From City</u>		
<u>Dumpster Size</u> <u>(cubic yards)</u>	<u>Standard Service</u>	<u>Pull-Out Service</u>
<u>2</u>	<u>132.45</u>	<u>139.76</u>
<u>3</u>	<u>151.55</u>	<u>159.13</u>
<u>4</u>	<u>173.42</u>	<u>183.04</u>
<u>6</u>	<u>210.74</u>	<u>222.43</u>

MONTHLY FEE FOR THREE COLLECTIONS PER WEEK

Compacted <u>Solid Waste</u> Materials, Dumpster Privately Owned		
Dumpster Size (cubic yards)	Standard Service	Pull-Out Service
1	\$712.05	\$755.85
1 1/2	813.75	863.84
2	935.82	993.41
3	1,139.25	1,209.37
4	1,322.35	1,403.75
6	1,769.92	1,878.85
8	N/A	N/A

Noncompacted <u>Solid Waste</u> Materials, Dumpster Leased From City		
Dumpster Size (cubic yards)	Standard Service	Pull-Out Service
1	\$191.79	\$202.73
1 1/2	N/A	N/A
2	251.43	265.82
3	305.70	323.21
4	354.80	375.12
6	475.13	502.34
8	626.72	663.01

<u>Noncompacted Cardboard Recyclable Materials, Dumpster Leased From City</u>		
<u>Dumpster Size</u> <u>(cubic yards)</u>	<u>Standard Service</u>	<u>Pull-Out Service</u>
<u>2</u>	<u>191.79</u>	<u>202.73</u>
<u>3</u>	<u>219.75</u>	<u>230.74</u>
<u>4</u>	<u>251.43</u>	<u>265.82</u>
<u>6</u>	<u>305.70</u>	<u>323.21</u>

MONTHLY FEE FOR FOUR COLLECTIONS PER WEEK

Compacted <u>Solid Waste</u> Materials, Dumpster Privately Owned		
Dumpster Size (cubic yards)	Standard Service	Pull-Out Service
1	\$949.39	\$1,007.81
1 1/2	1,085.01	1,151.79
2	1,247.76	1,324.55
3	1,519.01	1,612.49
4	1,763.14	1,871.65
6	2,359.90	2,505.11
8	N/A	N/A

Noncompacted <u>Solid Waste</u> Materials, Dumpster Leased From City		
Dumpster Size (cubic yards)	Standard Service	Pull-Out Service
1	\$251.12	\$265.73
1 1/2	N/A	N/A
2	329.41	348.60
3	400.62	423.99
4	464.98	492.09
6	622.63	658.94
8	823.28	871.67

<u>Noncompacted Cardboard Recyclable Materials, Dumpster Leased From City</u>		
<u>Dumpster Size</u> <u>(cubic yards)</u>	<u>Standard Service</u>	<u>Pull-Out Service</u>
<u>2</u>	<u>251.12</u>	<u>265.73</u>
<u>3</u>	<u>285.68</u>	<u>299.96</u>
<u>4</u>	<u>329.41</u>	<u>348.60</u>
<u>6</u>	<u>400.62</u>	<u>423.99</u>

MONTHLY FEE FOR FIVE COLLECTIONS PER WEEK

Compacted <u>Solid Waste</u> Materials, Dumpster Privately Owned		
Dumpster Size (cubic yards)	Standard Service	Pull-Out Service
1	\$1,186.73	\$1,259.77
1 1/2	1,356.26	1,439.72
2	1,559.71	1,655.68
3	1,898.78	2,015.60
4	2,203.93	2,339.55
6	2,949.87	3,131.42
8	N/A	N/A

Noncompacted <u>Solid Waste</u> Materials, Dumpster Leased From City		
Dumpster Size (cubic yards)	Standard Service	Pull-Out Service
1	\$310.46	\$328.73
1 1/2	N/A	N/A
2	407.40	431.40
3	495.56	524.77
4	575.19	609.08
6	770.11	815.49
8	1,019.84	1,080.32

MONTHLY FEE FOR SIX COLLECTIONS PER WEEK

Compacted <u>Solid Waste</u> Materials, Dumpster Privately Owned		
Dumpster Size (cubic yards)	Standard Service	Pull-Out Service
1	\$1,424.07	\$1,511.73
1 1/2	1,627.52	1,727.67
2	1,871.65	1,986.83

3	2,278.52	2,418.74
4	2,644.72	2,807.47
6	3,539.87	3,757.68
8	N/A	N/A

Noncompacted <u>Solid Waste</u> Materials, Dumpster Leased From City		
Dumpster Size (cubic yards)	Standard Service	Pull-Out Service
1	\$369.79	\$391.71
1½	N/A	N/A
2	485.37	514.19
3	590.50	625.55
4	685.38	726.05
6	917.60	972.07
8	1,216.40	1,288.98

(d) *Roll-off service.* Fees for roll-off service are as follows:

Roll-off Container Size (cubic yards)	Pull Charge (per pull, with minimum charge of \$218.00 \$225.00 per month)	Tipping Fee (Applies to all sizes)
10, 20, 30, 40	\$218.00 <u>\$225.00</u>	Actual scale fee for tonnage (landfill or recycled)
Compacted	\$328.00 <u>\$338.00</u>	
<u>Delivery Fee</u>	<u>\$100.00</u>	

(e) *Bulk collection.*

- (1) One cubic yard or less \$21.00
- (2) Each additional cubic yard \$21.00

(f) ~~*Bundled corrugated cardboard collection.* The charge for bundled corrugated cardboard collection, for up to one cubic yard collected once per week, shall be \$29.42 in FY 17. Bundles shall not exceed four feet in length by three feet in height by one foot in depth.~~

~~(e)~~(f) *Other charges.*

- (1) *Overloading dumpsters.* Customers filling dumpsters in excess of normal capacity will be charged for such excess at the rate of \$15.75 per cubic yard or portion thereof. The director may require a customer to increase the rate of service or size of the dumpster if the customer repeatedly fills a dumpster in excess of its capacity.
- (2) *Dumpster transport and rental fees.* A fee of \$50.00 will be charged for transporting a dumpster to and from the repair shop and for the return and use of a rental dumpster for one week.
- (3) *Dumpster lock-bar installation fee.* A fee of \$100.00 will be charged for the installation of a locking bar on any and all dumpsters.
- (4) *Roll-off container ~~delivery and/or relocate fee.~~ A fee of \$100.00 will be charged for delivery of each roll-off container.* A \$100.00 relocation fee may be charged at the discretion of the director or his designee for requests to move a roll-off without a pull charge.
- (5) *Bulk trash and special collections.* The director shall have the authority to determine charges for these services based on the cost of providing the service.

~~(h)~~(g) ~~*Tenant Dumpster deposits.*~~ Before rendering service to a ~~tenant~~ customer, the city shall require a deposit of three times the monthly fee for all sizes to secure the payment of the account, or in such larger amount as the finance director determines is necessary to provide adequate security considering the particular circumstances of each case. Such deposits may be held by the city until final settlement of the customer's account. The city may require an additional deposit for a customer if the customer fails to maintain a satisfactory payment record.

SECTION 12. All Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict herewith shall be and the same are hereby repealed.

SECTION 13. This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon its approval and adoption, as provided by law.

PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VENICE, FLORIDA, THIS 22nd DAY OF SEPTEMBER 2020.

First Reading: September 8, 2020
Final Reading: September 22, 2020

ADOPTION: September 22, 2020

Ron Feinsod, Mayor

ATTEST:

Lori Stelzer, MMC, City Clerk

I, LORI STELZER, MMC, City Clerk of the City of Venice, Florida, a municipal corporation in Sarasota County, Florida, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a full and complete, true and correct copy of an Ordinance duly adopted by the Venice City Council, at a meeting thereof duly convened and held on the 22nd day of September, 2020, a quorum being present.

WITNESS my hand and the official seal of said City this 22nd day of September, 2020.

Lori Stelzer, MMC, City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

City Attorney